
Resources and Transformation Directorate
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House  107-117 Botchergate

Cumbria  CA1 1RD Fax 01228 606372
Tel 01228 606060  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk

1

22 January 2018

To:  The Chair and Members of the Cumbria 
LGPS Local Pension Board

Agenda
CUMBRIA LGPS LOCAL PENSION BOARD

A meeting of the Cumbria LGPS Local Pension Board will be held as follows: 

Date: Tuesday 30 January 2018
Time: 1.00 pm
Place: Cumbria House, Carlisle

Julie Crellin
Assistant Director – Finance (s151 Officer)

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  Holly English
Direct Line: 01228 227354
Email: holly.english@cumbria.gov.uk

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria



2

MEMBERSHIP

Employer Representatives Employee (member) Representatives

David Southward– CCC (Vice-Chair) Deirdre Burnet Pensioner – (Chair)
Kerry Powell – Other Karen Thompson – Deferred
Barbara Cannon – Districts Karen Wilson - Active

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Agenda and Reports

Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting.

The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website – 
www.cumbria.gov.uk/councilmeetings/ 

Background Papers

Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to Legal and Democratic Services at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/councilmeetings/


3

A G E N D A

PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

Part 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

2  TERMS OF REFERENCE AND MEMBERSHIP

To note the terms of reference of the Board.

To note the appointment of Kerry Powell as Employer Representative for Other 
Employers.

3  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises

1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 
a beneficial interest) and the authority 

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) Which has not been fully discharged. 

4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.  

5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the authority for a month or longer.  



4

6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) 

(a) The landlord is the authority; and

(b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial 
interest.

7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the authority; and

(b) Either – 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered.

Note
A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners). 

4  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether there are any items on the agenda for which the press and public 
should be excluded.

5  MINUTES

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Cumbria Local Pension Board meeting 
held on 22 September 2017 (copy enclosed).

6  SCHEDULE OF FUTURE MEETINGS

 17 July 2018, 1:00pm, Cumbria House, Carlisle

TBC

 21 January 2019, or
 31 January 2019



5

7  LOCAL PENSION BOARD - FUTURE FOCUS AND WORKPLAN

To consider a presentation from the Pensions Regulator.

8  PREPARATIONS FOR THE GENERAL DATA PROTECTION REGULATION 
(GDPR)

To consider a presentation from Your Pensions Service (YPS).

9  CUMBRIA LOCAL PENSION BOARD FOCUS FOR 2018 INTO THE FUTURE

To consider a discussion paper from the Assistant Director – Finance (s151 Officer) 
(copy enclosed).

10 REVIEW OF PENSIONS COMMITTEE DECISIONS AND OTHER MATTERS 
FOR CONSIDERATION DURING THE PERIOD

To consider a report from the Assistant Director – Finance (s151 Officer) (copy 
enclosed).

Part 2: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

11 REVIEW OF ADMINISTRATION MATTERS. ISSUES RAISED SINCE LAST 
MEETING

To consider a report from the Assistant Director – Finance (s151 Officer) (copy 
enclosed).



This page is intentionally left blank



Agreed by Cumbria County Council 15th January 2015

Cumbria Local Pension Board (LGPS)
Functions

To assist the Administering Authority of the Cumbria Local Government Pension 
Scheme to secure compliance with:-

 The regulations covering administration of a local government pension 
scheme;

 Other legislation relation to the governance and administration of the LGPS; 
and

 The requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the 
LGPS. 

And to 
 Ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the 

LGPS.

To have a policy and framework to meet the knowledge and understanding 
requirements of section 248A of the Pensions Act 2004.

In their role in assisting the Administering Authority as described above, the Board 
shall report twice yearly to the Pension Committee on matters reviewed and 
suggestions for their consideration.  Where the Board is concerned that due 
consideration has not been given to matters of non-compliance the Board may 
submit a report for consideration by the Audit and Assurance Committee as the 
body designated by the Administering Authority with the capacity to investigate 
such matters on its behalf. 

The Board is constituted under the Public Service Pension Act 2013 and the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 2014 and 
is therefore not subject to the requirements of s.101 of the Local Government Act 
1972. The Board has no remit as a decision making body but is established to 
assist the Administration Authority fulfil its functions which shall be deemed to cover 
all aspects of governance and administration of the Pension Fund.

Board Membership 

Equal representation between scheme employers and scheme members is 
required.  The Cumbria Local Pension Board will have three scheme member 
representatives and three scheme employer representatives.  Three Member 
representatives, three employer representatives, substitutes are not permitted.

Appointment of Board members - To ensure an open and transparent selection 
process and to ensure the Administration Authority meets its obligation to ensure 
appointed members have the relevant experience and capacity, the selection 
process will be through application, matching to a role profile and interview.  The 
Appointment Panel will consist of the Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer and 
Portfolio Holder for Finance.

7

Agenda Item 2



Agreed by Cumbria County Council 15th January 2015

Appointment of the Chair / Vice Chair – the Administering Authority will appoint the 
Chair and the Vice Chair.  The roles will be split with one being a scheme 
representative member rep and one being a scheme representative  employer rep 
and this will be alternated on a two yearly cycle, 

Appointments will be for four years and there will be no limit on the number of 
times a member of the board can seek to be reappointed.
The three employer representatives will be allocated 1 to the County Council; 1 to 
the District Councils and 1 for all other employers in the Fund.
The three scheme member representatives will be selected to ensure all 
membership groups within the Fund are covered.

Reimbursement of reasonable expenses for attendance at meetings and training 
sessions will be per the Council’s agreed policies and rates for Elected Members. 
All such costs will be met directly by the Pension Fund. 

Relevant experience and capacity – the administering authority must ensure that 
each person appointed to the Board has the relevant experience and the capacity 
to represent the employers or members (as appropriate) of the Fund.  Initially this 
will be done through selection by the Administration Authority but, following 
appointment, it is a member’s individual responsibility to ensure they attend all 
training etc. to enable them to continue to fulfil the experience and capacity 
requirements.  Full training will be provided and all reasonable costs will be met by 
the Fund.  To ensure compliance with the above a general level of attendance at 
meetings and training events is required.

Board Operating Structure and Codes of Conduct

 The Board will be quorate if 25% of designated members (i.e. 2) are in 
attendance.

 Prior to appointment to the Board all members will be required to sign up to 
the Board’s Code of Conduct and Conflicts of Interest Policy.  As a body 
representing the public interest the Code of Conduct and Conflicts of 
Interest Policy of members of the Local Pension Board will be aligned to 
those applicable to Members of the Pension Committee and is available on 
the Councils Website. 

 The Board will meet as a minimum twice a year. Meetings will be held 
during normal working hours and will predominantly be held within County 
boundaries. 

 Where required, a minimum of 2 Board members (one from the scheme 
member representatives and one from the scheme employer 
representatives) or the Administering Authority can request a special 
meeting be convened.  Notice of ten working days must be given.

 Creation of Working Parties / Sub Groups – as a non-decision-making body 
the Board have no authority to establish Working Parties / Sub Groups. 

 Voting rights – Each member shall have an equal vote and, should it be 
required, the Chair will have the casting vote.

8



Agreed by Cumbria County Council 15th January 2015

Commissioning of Service providers and Advisors 

 All Board members have the right to access the support of the experienced 
Local government Pension Scheme Independent Advisors, however due 
regard has to be taken of securing value for money and as such whether in 
the first instance Officers could provide the assistance required. 

 Items of expenditure by the Board must have prior approval from the 
Section 151 Officer.

Role of Officers

 Reasonable secretarial and professional support will be provided by Officers 
of the Administering Authority.  Costs associated with this will be directly 
charged to the Fund.

Publication and Data Protection

 As a general principle meetings will be open to the public. 
 Paper or electronic versions (as requested) of all agendas and papers will 

be provided to all members of the Board prior to a meeting. The Chair can 
accept that items be tabled on the day should such a need arise.

 As a matter of policy the Pension Fund has adopted the principals of 
paperless working, therefore as a matter of course public access to all 
agendas, public papers and minutes etc. will be available on the Council’s 
website. On request alternative media versions are available.

 The County Council as the Administration Authority is the registered data 
controller of the Cumbria LGPS, and as such all policies and practices in 
this regard applicable within the County Council are directly applicable to the 
Board.

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CUMBRIA LGPS LOCAL PENSION BOARD 
 

Minutes of the Cumbria LGPS Local Pension Board held on Friday, 22nd 
September at 10:00 in the Conference Room, Cumbria House, Carlisle, CA1 1RD. 
 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Employer Representatives 
 
David Southward - CCC 
 

Employee (member) Representatives  
 
Deirdre Burnet - Pensioner (Chair) 
Karen Wilson - Active 
 

 
Also in Attendance:- 
 
Fiona Miller - Senior Manager - Pensions & Financial Services  
Lucy Taylor - Finance Manager - Pensions, Investment & 

Governance 
Gill Welbourn - Technical Finance Officer - Pensions Investments 
 
 

  
PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE 

PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

 

 
1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Karen Thomson  Employee Representative (Deferred)  
Barbara Cannon  Employer Representative (District Councils)  
Julie Crellin   Assistant Director - Finance (Section 151 officer) 
Peter George  Group Finance Manager Pensions, Investments & Insurance  
 
2 MEMBERSHIP & TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
Following the constitutional two year cyclical rotation of the Chair from the employer 
to the members representative Cllr Ian Stewart resigned from both the Chair and his 
role on the Board Deirdre Burnet was welcomed as the new Chair, and she thanked 
Ian for his contribution over the last two years.  
 
Councillor David Southward has been appointed to the Board replacing Ian as the 
Employer Representative for Cumbria County Council, and became Vice-Chair. 
 
Following Ruth Hunter’s resignation as Employer Representative for ‘Other 
Employers’, the Board was updated with the progress of the appointment of a 
replacement member.   Interviews are scheduled to take place on 27th October. 
 
 

11

Agenda Item 5



 

 
 
 

3 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 
 

There were no disclosures of interest.  
 
4 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED that  the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during 

consideration of the following agenda items on the grounds that 
they contain exempt information as defined under Paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended) relating to the financial or business affairs of particular 
individuals:- 

 
Item 13 - Update on Proposals to Pool Pension Assets across LGPS VII – Part 2 
Appendix (Paper 8). 

 
5 MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Cumbria Local Pension Board held on 30th 
January 2017 were confirmed, as circulated. 
 
6 FUTURE MEETINGS 

 
Dates of future meetings of the Board are proposed as follows so to align with the 
Cumbria Pensions Committee meetings and work cycles: 

 

 30 January 2018, 1pm 

 17 July 2018, 1pm 
 
7 THE PENSIONS REGULATOR - PUBLIC SERVICE GOVERNANCE AND 

ADMINISTRATION SURVEY 2016 RESULTS 
 

A report by the Senior Manager - Pensions and Financial Services was considered 
by the Board.  It summarised the results from The Pensions Regulator (TPR) survey 
on the Governance and Administration of all public service schemes (including the 
LGPS), carried out between October and December 2016.  The aim was to assess 
the standard to which they were being run, and to check the progress made since 
their last survey (2015).  Participation was voluntary, with 90% (48% in 2015) of 
schemes responding. The Cumbria LGPS completed the survey for both years. 
 
The results showed that schemes were making progress in establishing the 
processes that The Pensions Regulator (TPR) regards as key in supporting 
compliance with legal requirements and meeting TPR standards. The greatest 
improvement was seen in the proportion of schemes with procedures in place to 
identify, assess and report breaches of the law (an increase of 30%). 
 
It was reported that nationally, 21% of LGPS members did not receive their Annual 
Benefit Statements (ABSs) on time, but within Cumbria, 99.1% of ABS’s were 

12



 

 
 
 

issued in advance of the statutory deadline (31st August 2016).  The Cumbria LGPS 
has a strong relationship with the Pensions Administration function. 
 
TPR has noted that scheme managers (within the LGPS the Administering 
Authorities) should be aware that the Regulator is likely to make further use of its 
enforcement powers in 2017. TPR has stated that they will take enforcement action 
where scheme managers have not taken sufficient action to address issues or meet 
their duties.  
 
It was concluded that Cumbria LGPS has clear policies and practices in place to 
ensure compliance with the Pension Regulator and to complete returns in advance 
of the required timescales. 
 
The Chair noted that she felt as a Board they need to direct their future focus on 
Record Keeping, Internal Controls and Fund Member Communications. 
 
RESOLVED, - that Members note the report. 
 
 
8 UPDATE ON PROPOSALS TO POOL PENSIONS ASSETS ACROSS THE 

LGPS VII  
 

A report by the Senior Manager - Pensions and Financial Services was considered 
by the Board. This presented in its entirety the report which went to the 19th 
September meeting of the Pension Committee.  As pooling is a major component of 
the current work programmes for all LGPS Funds, the Board should be kept fully 
informed of current developments in this rapidly developing area.   
 
This report updated Members on the progress made following the decision on 16th 
February 2017 at Council that Cumbria take a shareholding interest in the Border to 
Coast Pensions Partnership Ltd (BCPP) and formally select BCCP Ltd as its chosen 
approach to meet the regulatory requirement to pool assets in the LGPS.  
 
The core progress during the period has been:- 

 The completion and enactment of all the required legal documentation to 
bring both the Joint Committee into being as a formal entity and the 
incorporation of BCPP Ltd, the company. 

 The holding of the first Joint Committee meeting on the 6th June 2017. 

 The progression of the recruitment of the BCPP Ltd executive team, with the 
appointment of Chris Hitchen as the Company Chair & the selection of an 
approved candidate for the position of Chief Executive. (a public 
announcement is expected within the next few weeks). 

 The appointment of the company’s bankers, payroll providers & the 
progression of the procurement to secure the provision of BCPP’s Ltd main 
service providers (third party administrator; investment ICT, corporate ICT & 
premises selection). 

 Progress towards completion of the FCA application pack.   
 

13



 

 
 
 

The next stage in this process involves the Funds focussing on becoming an 
intelligent client, with their initial involvement being to approve the initial asset 
offering from BCPP Ltd, the five year strategic plan and budget, and operating 
charging policy.    
 
There were general discussions around the ‘role of the Board’ including the 
frequency of meetings and the speed of actions.  Pooling is a fast moving process 
and to ensure oversight and challenge it is important to ensure governance and 
decision-making is appropriate, and fit for purpose. 
 
The Board therefore requests that the Pension Committee consider whether an 
External Review should be carried out as to how governance structures within the 
Fund are being changed to ensure the Fund’s processes remain fit for purpose, as it 
moves forward with pooling. 
 
 

 
RESOLVED, - that the Board note the progress of development of the BCPP. 
  
 Additional Recommendation 
 - the Board  request that the Pension Committee consider the 

procurement of an External Governance Review – covering the 
internal management of future relationships between the Fund 
and BCPP Ltd and the process of transitioning assets to the 
pool.  

 
 
9 MARKETS IN FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DIRECTIVE (MIFID II) 
 
The Senior Manager - Pensions and Financial Services presented a paper for 
consideration by the Board.  This presented in its entirety the report which went to 
the 19th September meeting of the Pension Committee.  This report outlined the 
impact of the implementation of the Markets in Financial Instrument Directive 
2014/65 (“MiFID II”) and in particular the risk to the Council as Administering 
Authority of becoming a retail client on 3rd January 2018 when this regulation is 
enacted.  
 
The Board was asked to note that the Pensions Committee in acknowledging the 
tight timetable for implementation, were recommended to agree that applications 
from the Administering Authority for election to “elective professional client” status 
should be made on behalf of the Fund, with all current managers promptly in order 
to ensure it can continue to implement an effective investment strategy.  

 
RESOLVED, - The Board should note that the Pensions Committee, at their 

19th September meeting, resolved to: 
 

• Note the potential impact on the Fund’s investment strategy of 
becoming a retail client with effect from 3rd January 2018. 

 

14



 

 
 
 

• Agree that applications from the Administering Authority for opting up 
to elective professional client status should be made on behalf of the 
Fund with all current managers promptly in order to ensure it can 
continue to implement an effective investment strategy. 

 

• Choose to opt up for all services offered by each financial institution 
rather than individual services due to the efficiency of this approach 
and to enable the Fund to explore new products without future 
requirement to opt up with those managers.  

 

• And that in electing for professional client status, the Pensions 
Committee acknowledged and agreed to forego the protections 
available to retail clients.  

 
 
10 YOUR PENSION SERVICE (YPS) ANNUAL ADMINISTRATION REPORT 
 2017 
 
A report by the Senior Manager - Pensions and Financial Services was considered 
by the Board. This presented the YPS Annual Administration Report 2017, which is 
produced in accordance with the Cumbria LGPS’s Administration and 
Communication Policy.  The Annual Report described the performance of YPS 
against the required standards during the year. 
 
All key performance indicators were exceeded during 2016/17. This strong 
performance was achieved against a challenging backdrop of ongoing change and 
increasing membership.   
 
Members were informed that in addition to the industry standard indicators provided, 
from 2017/18 the YPS Performance Report has introduced whole system 
performance data by including statistics relating to the time taken from when a 
member requests to be put into pension until the time their pension is ready for first 
payment. This period can be influenced by response times from the individual, the 
employer and YPS. While YPS cannot control all these elements, monitoring the 
complete cycle is more representative of the client experience. Such indicators will 
help to inform the Committee and the Board of where any systematic blockages are 
occurring and thereby where to direct resources aimed at improving our members’ 
experience 
 
Cumbria LGPS continue to work with YPS to build on achievements to date thereby 
ensuring that members continue to receive a high quality, progressive service.   
 
RESOLVED, - that the Board note this report.  
 
 
11 REVIEW OF PENSION COMMITTEE DECISIONS, AND OTHER MATTERS 

 FOR CONSIDERATION DURING THE PERIOD 
 

15



 

 
 
 

A report by the Senior Manager - Pensions and Financial Services was considered 
by the Board. This report summarised the work conducted and decisions made by 
the Committee at its meetings held on 7th March and 19th September 2017, in order 
that the Board Members can review these as part of their legal responsibility to 
members of the Cumbria LGPS.  It was noted that Members now have access to 
Pension Committee papers ahead of the meeting to enable any questions/queries to 
be raised by the Board either at or before the relevant Pension Committee meeting.  
This was introduced to allow a more effective oversight process to operate. 
 
Members are invited to attend all training sessions run by the Pension Committee 
and Pension Committee meetings as an observer.  The new Chair of the Board 
attended the Investment Strategy Information Session and Pension Committee 
meeting on 19th September 2017. 
 
This report also advised Members of issues arising within the Local Pension Board 
arena, and more specific Cumbria matters for their consideration. Particular items 
for note were the draft Cumbria LPB Annual Report 2016/17 and the issue of LPB 
Indemnity Insurance.   
 
The risk register was reviewed.  Members felt that as this is an important aspect of 
the Board’s role, it would be useful to have a training session on how to monitor and 
mitigate risks, at their next meeting. 
 
The Board discussed risk 3.1, employer failure to pay contributions into the Scheme, 
in some detail. Late payments and data submission are reported via the Quarterly 
Monitoring Reports to Committee. It was recommended that all administration 
elements of quarterly monitoring, are taken out of this general paper, and reported 
in a separate Administration Paper to the Board. 

 
RESOLVED, - that the Board note the decisions approved by the Pension 

Committee at their meeting on 7th March and those 
recommended for approval (and subsequently approved) at 
their 19th September 2017 meeting.   

 
 - that the Board note that an indemnity insurance policy is in the 

process of being procured for the Cumbria Local Pensions 
Board. 

 
 Additional Recommendation 
 -that as a key matter of interest that a separate Pensions 

Administration paper should be presented to the Board, rather 
than including it within the general monitoring paper. 

 
12 REVIEW OF CURRENT PENSION OMBUDSMAN CASES 
 
A report by the Senior Manager-Pensions and Financial Services was considered by 
the Board. The report provided details of ongoing Cumbria LGPS Pensions 
Ombudsman cases. In one case, the Ombudsman considered that Cumbria County 
Council failed to conduct an ill-health appeal appropriately. In the second case, the 

16



 

 
 
 

Ombudsman considered that the Council had appropriately met its obligations 
relating to a Pensions Sharing Order. 
 
In addition, the Board was notified that the Fund is aware of two other cases that are 
expected to be lodged imminently with the Pensions Ombudsman.  
 
RESOLVED, - the Board note the Determinations made by the Pensions 

Ombudsman.  
 
 

PART 2 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND 
PRESS 

 
 
13 UPDATE ON PROPOSALS TO POOL PENSIONS ASSETS ACROSS THE 

 LGPS VII (APPENDIX) 
 
Members received the Part Two appendices for item 8 – Update on Proposals to 
Pool Pensions Assets across the LGPS VII. 
 
RESOLVED,  that the appendix be noted. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 12:10 pm 

17



This page is intentionally left blank



CUMBRIA LGPS LOCAL PENSION BOARD

Meeting date: 30th January 2018

From: Julie Crellin, Assistant Director – Finance 
(Section 151 Officer)

DISCUSSION PAPER ON CUMBRIA LOCAL PENSION 
BOARD’S FOCUS FOR 2018 AND INTO THE FUTURE.

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The role of the Board is to assist the Administering Authority in all 
aspects of the governance and administration of the LGPS.

1.2 Cumbria County Council, as Administering Authority for the Cumbria 
LGPS has delegated its functions, under Section 101 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 to the Cumbria Pensions Committee (the 
‘Committee’). 

1.3 Section 4 of this report details some of the topics that could be 
considered by the Board as the areas they may like to focus their 
attention on in 2018 and coming years.   

1.4 Following on from the presentations from both the Pensions Regulator 
(TPR) and Your Pension Service (YPS) it is proposed that Members 
consider all topics being brought to this meeting, together with any 
other matters and discuss and agree the areas on which they intend to 
focus their more detailed attention at future Board meetings.

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1 Robust governance arrangements help to ensure good management of 
the Fund and help to contribute to investment performance.  
Management of the Board has been addressed in the Board’s Terms of 
Reference. 

2.2 There are no specific equality implications arising out of the 
recommendations of this report.

19

Agenda Item 9



3.0 RECOMMENDATION

3.1 The Board is recommended to consider and discuss all relevant topics 
and agree the areas on which they intend to focus their more detailed 
attention at future Board meetings.

4.0 BACKGROUND AND TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION

4.1 Regulation 106(1) specifies that each Administering Authority shall establish 
its own Local Pension Board with responsibility for assisting the 
Administering Authority to secure compliance with, the Regulations, other 
legislation relating to the governance and administration of the LGPS and 
the requirements imposed by the Regulator in relation to the LGPS. In 
addition it must ensure the effective and efficient governance and 
administration of the LGPS.

4.2 The Pensions Regulator publicises the view that Pensions Boards are 
responsible for assisting the scheme managers in securing compliance with 
the scheme regulations and other legislation relating to the governance and 
administration of the scheme. 

4.3 The remit of the Local Pension Board can be as wide or as narrow as is 
decided upon locally. However, under regulation 106(8) of the Regulations, 
the Local Pension Board has the power to do anything which is calculated to 
facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the discharge of any of its 
functions.

4.4 Therefore the method of how each Board carries its role of assisting the 
scheme manager will vary across Funds based on scheme regulations or 
the Fund specific terms of reference.

4.5 Since the first meeting of the Cumbria LGPS Local Pension Board in July 
2015, Members have received training on a variety of topics and some 
Board Members have attended external training events to further enhance 
their knowledge of the Scheme. The Board have received updates on and 
reviewed developments in the following work areas:

 New policy on Reporting Legal Breaches to the Pensions Regulator, 
approved by Pensions Committee on 21st September 2015 was 
endorsed and adopted by the Board in October 2015.

 Agreement of a work programme aimed at securing compliance with 
LGPS regulations and the Pension Regulator Requirements.

 Progress towards the Pooling of Assets across LGPS.

 2016 Triennial Valuation.

 Consideration of the outcomes of the Pension Regulator’s Self-
assessment tool measuring compliance with their Code of Practice for 

20



Public Sector Pension Schemes, and continue to keep governance 
issues under constant review.

4.6 The Board now receives notification of the publication of the Committee 
papers at the same time as the Committee Members which allows them to 
access the full private pack and review the papers in a timely manner, thus 
allowing for any comments or suggestions to be communicated to the 
Committee in advance of any decisions being made.

4.7 Some areas that the Board may consider as areas they intend to focus 
attention on and potentially receive additional training on are:

 Record Keeping - including the consideration of the new General 
Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) being enacted in May 2018. 

 Effectiveness of Internal Controls – including an assessment of the 
content of the Risk Register

 Effectiveness of scheme member and employer communications – 
promotion of Member Self-Serve provided by YPS.

 Review of Governance processes – to ensure compliance with TPR 
Code of Practice 14 (Available in the Guidance folder of the CLGPS 
Local Pension Boards SharePoint site) 

 Review of all scheme documents and policies to ensure all aspects 
are covered and up to date.

 Review the Annual Benefits statement – issuing, employer liaison, 
communications

4.8 The Chair would like the Board to take a pro-active approach to reviewing 
how the Fund operates and its administration and governance policies and 
procedures to facilitate the provision of effective challenge and recommend 
any areas for improvement. 

4.9 It is also appropriate to be aware of the risks the Fund faces including 
reputational risk and key personnel dependencies together with the ongoing 
need for the knowledge and skills of all Officers and Members involved in the 
management and oversight of the Fund to be maintained at an acceptable 
level.

4.10 There are many resources available to guide the work and considerations of 
Local Pension Boards in addition to the Pension Regulator’s Code of 
Practice 14 mentioned in section 4.5 including (Available in the Guidance 
folder of the CLGPS Local Pension Boards SharePoint site:

 The Pension Regulator’s Quick Guide to Public Service Pension 
Boards.

 CIPFA Local Pensions Board – A Technical Knowledge and Skills 
Framework.

21



5.0 OPTIONS

5.1 To consider and discuss the topics brought to the meeting and agree the 
Board’s areas of focus.

5.2 To request further information on particular topics for consideration at a 
future date.

6.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Improved governance aids the Fund in running efficiently and effectively, 
controlling costs and helps to achieve its actuarially defined investment 
returns.  Cost control and the investment performance of the Fund will have 
a direct impact on the funding level and therefore all employers’ contribution 
rates.  This will have an impact on the Fund Employers’ revenue budgets.

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There are no direct legal implications arising out of this report.

8.0 CONCLUSION

8.1 The LPB remit is oversight of the governance of the Fund including review of 
how decisions are made, the Board has the power to do anything which is 
calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the discharge of any 
of its functions. This report intends to facilitate the agreement of the areas on 
which the Board intends to focus their more detailed attention.

J Crellin
Assistant Director – Finance (s.151 Officer)
30th January 2018

APPENDICES

No Appendices 

Electoral Division(s): All

Executive Decision No*

Key Decision No*

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan? N/A*

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency? No*

22



N/A*If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

No*Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A*Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken?

No*Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

None

REPORT AUTHOR

Contact:
Peter George, Group Finance Manager- Pensions, Investments & Insurance, 
01228 226311 Peter.George@cumbria.gov.uk  

Lucy Taylor, Finance Manager - Pensions, Investments & Governance,
01228 226515, lucy.taylor@cumbria.gov.uk 

23

mailto:Peter.George@cumbria.gov.uk
mailto:lucy.taylor@cumbria.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



CUMBRIA LGPS LOCAL PENSION BOARD

Meeting date: 30th January 2018

From: Julie Crellin, Assistant Director – Finance 
(Section 151 Officer)

REVIEW OF PENSION COMMITTEE DECISIONS AND OTHER 
MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION DURING THE PERIOD

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The role of the Board is to assist the Administering Authority in all 
aspects of the governance and administration of the LGPS.

1.2 Cumbria County Council, as Administering Authority for the Cumbria 
LGPS has delegated its functions, under Section 101 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 to the Cumbria Pensions Committee (the 
‘Committee’). 

1.3 Section 4 of this report therefore summarises the work conducted and 
decisions made by the Committee at its meetings on 5th December 
2017 in order that the Board Members can review these as part of their 
legal responsibility to members of the Cumbria LGPS.  

1.4 This report also advises Members of issues arising at Committee 
meetings. As agreed at the last Board meeting, Pensions 
Administration issues have been highlighted in a separate report to 
allow for a more detailed focus on these items.   

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1 Robust governance arrangements help to ensure good management of 
the Fund and help to contribute to investment performance.  
Management of the Board has been addressed in the Board’s Terms of 
Reference. 

2.2 There are no specific equality implications arising out of the 
recommendations of this report.

25

Agenda Item 10



3.0 RECOMMENDATION

3.1 The Board is recommended to note the decisions approved and other 
matters considered by the Pension Committee at their meeting on 5th 
December 2017.  

4.0 PENSION COMMITTEE DECISIONS

4.1 The Cumbria Pensions Committee is the delegated decision making body for 
the Fund, and as such its decisions are of particular relevance to the 
Cumbria Local Pension Board (LPB).  It is the role of the Board to assist the 
Administering Authority of the Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme 
to secure compliance with:-

 The regulations covering administration of a local government 
pension scheme;

 Other legislation relation to the governance and administration of the 
LGPS; and

 The requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to 
the LGPS.

And to 
Ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of 
the LGPS.

4.2 To date all papers presented to the Pensions Committee and the resulting 
decisions taken on a quarterly basis have been summarised in a report for 
Board. These papers are available through Sharepoint for all Local Pension 
Board members to access at the same time as they are sent out to Pension 
Committee Members. This enables any questions/queries to be raised by 
the Board either at or before the relevant Pension Committee meeting.  
Reporting in this way should allow a more effective oversight process to 
operate.  Consequently Appendix 1 to this report presents the 
recommendations agreed by Committee at the 5th December meeting, full 
details can be reviewed online.

4.3 In addition to the quarterly monitoring report the December meeting 
considered the following reports:

  Audit Findings Report for the Cumbria LGPS; 

 Summary from Cumbria LGPS Local Pension Board 22nd 
September 2017; 

 Training update and future planned training; 

 Minutes of BCPP Joint Committee;

 Update on implementation of the BCPP Asset Management 
Company (Update VIII); 

26



 Responsible Investment Policy;

 Presentation from BCPP Ltd;

 Voluntary Scheme Pays; 

 Update on the progress of MiFID; 

 Half Year update of the Pensions Administration Budget 
2017/18 & Business Plan; and

  Investment Sub-Group activity report to November 2017, 
specifically around the proposed consideration of an Equity 
Protection Strategy. 

4.4 A presentation session was also delivered on the Preparations for the 
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR), and as this was thought to be 
a matter of great interest to the Board, the presentation will be delivered in 
full at this meeting and has therefore been omitted from this report.

4.5 All recommendations with the presented papers were agreed by the 
Committee (see Appendix 1 for any additional commentary). 

5.0 LOCAL PENSION BOARD

5.1 Legal Breaches: The Cumbria Pension Fund had no breaches to report, for 
the period to the end of December 2017. As detailed to the September 
meeting in July 2017, the Pensions Regulator (tPR) levied its first fine 
against a public service pension scheme for failure to submit a Scheme 
Return by the specified date. Cumbria’s return was submitted in advance of 
the deadline, however we will continue to be mindful that this highlights the 
increasingly active role that the regulator is undertaking in regards to public 
sector pension scheme.

5.2 Risk: The Cumbria LGPS risk register (as presented in Appendix 2) has 
been updated since the last meeting to remove one risk, add one new risk 
and reduce the scoring of another risk. All three of these changes related to 
risks around the transition of assets and changes to the regulatory 
framework within which the Pension Fund is able to carry out its 
investments. There are currently no risks assessed as Red (6 Amber and 17 
Green).

5.3 As detailed to the September meeting a specific risk associated with 
cybercrime and digital information security was included in the register, 
which outlines the importance of this in the context of the type and volume of 
personal data that the Fund holds. 

5.4 The Corporate Risk Register continues to score the risk of cybercrime as a 
likelihood of 3 with an impact of 5. These scores have been transposed into 
the joint Cumbria LGPS and LPB risk register. 

5.5 In January 2018, the Audit and Assurance Committee undertook a deep dive 
of the risk of cybercrime and the Council’s mitigation of the risk. A 

27



presentation on this topic was delivered by the Assistant Director – Business 
Services with the aim of:

 Providing assurance that the risks are understood, assessed and 
continually monitored and managed.

 Providing information on actions taken to mitigate cyber risks and 
information governance.

 Receiving feedback from the Audit and Assurance Committee and to 
identify further actions.

5.6 The longer term target for this corporate risk is to reduce the score with the 
risk register from 15 to 10 through implementation of mitigating factors that 
would reduce the likelihood of a cybercrime from 3 to 2. 

5.7 The Pension Fund will benefit from these improvements in cybercrime 
prevention and additionally from actions taken by its partners and contracted 
suppliers that hold sensitive information and host business critical systems.

6.0 OTHER  MATTERS

6.1 Member Information: As previously stated, the Pensions Regulator 
requires contact details of LPB Members to be publicly available on the 
Cumbria County Council website. This information is available at the 
following weblink:

http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=1164. 

6.2 This information is also accessible by searching for Cumbria LGPS Pension 
Board through internet search engines. It is important that Members advise 
Pension Fund Officers of any changes to their information to ensure the 
website is up to date.

6.3 The website provides details of each Board member’s ‘cumbria.gov.uk’ email 
address which should be used for correspondence for all Pension Board 
matters.

6.4 New Member Selection: The appointment process for a Board Member to 
represent ‘Other Employers’ has now been completed.  There were two 
applications received by the closing date and these candidates attended 
interviews with the appointments panel at the end of October. The 
successful candidate is Ms Kerry Powell, Director of Communications and 
Resources (Section 151 Officer) at Lake District National Park Authority.

6.5 Attendance at Pension Committee:  Members are reminded that they are 
welcome to attend any Pension Committee meeting to observe proceedings.

6.6 Training: Deirdre Burnet attended a Members training event provided by 
Border to Coast Pension Partnership (BCPP) in September, which covered 
all major activities involved in running a pension fund, focussing on the 
responsibilities of those charged with governance of a Fund. The slides for 
this are available for review on the SharePoint site (2018 - Quarter 2)

28

http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=1164


6.7 Future meeting dates & availability: The next Board meeting is scheduled 
to take place on 17th July 2018, at 1pm. 

7.0 OPTIONS

7.1 To note the work undertaken by the Cumbria Pension Committee and the 
decisions made at their meetings on 5th December 2017.

7.2 To request further information on the governance arrangements under which 
decisions were made by the Pension Committee.

8.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

8.1 Improved governance aids the Fund in running efficiently and effectively, 
controlling costs and helps to achieve its actuarially defined investment 
returns.  Cost control and the investment performance of the Fund will have 
a direct impact on the funding level and therefore all employers’ contribution 
rates.  This will have an impact on the Fund Employers’ revenue budgets.

9.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1 The Cumbria Local Pensions Board is responsible for assisting the 
Administering Authority (i.e. Cumbria Pensions Committee) of the Cumbria 
Local Government Scheme to comply with all relevant legislative 
requirements and to ensure the effective governance of the scheme.  
Furthermore, it is part of the Local Pensions Board’s remit that it shall report 
twice yearly to the Pension Committee on matters reviewed and any 
suggestions for their consideration. 

10.0 CONCLUSION

10.1 The LPB remit is oversight of the governance of the Fund including review of 
how decisions are made. To do this effectively the Board needs to be aware 
of the work undertaken and decisions made by the Pensions Committee, 
and of current issues and matters arising.  Access and ability to review all 
papers which demonstrate the governance structure surrounding decision-
making processes help LPB members provide assurance that the Fund’s 
governance is robust and fit for purpose.

J Crellin
Assistant Director – Finance (s.151 Officer)
30th January 2018

29



APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Decisions made by the Cumbria Pensions Committee on 5th 
December 2017.

Appendix 2: Cumbria LGPS & Local Pension Board Risk Register - December 
2017

Electoral Division(s): All

Executive Decision No*

Key Decision No*

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan? N/A*

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency? No*

N/A*If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

No*Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A*Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken?

No*Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

None

REPORT AUTHOR

Contact:
Peter George, Group Finance Manager- Pensions, Investments & Insurance, 
01228 226311 Peter.George@cumbria.gov.uk  

Lucy Taylor, Finance Manager - Pensions, Investments & Governance,
01228 226515, lucy.taylor@cumbria.gov.uk 

30

mailto:Peter.George@cumbria.gov.uk
mailto:lucy.taylor@cumbria.gov.uk


Appendix 1

CUMBRIA PENSIONS COMMITTEE : 5th December 2017

PART I PAPERS

Item 8 (pages 21- 52) : Audit Findings Report for Cumbria LGPS

Members resolved to:- 

1. Note the Audit Findings Report from Grant Thornton relating to the 2016/17 
Financial Accounts ad Annual Report of the Cumbria LGPS Pension Fund .

Item 10 (pages 53 to 60): Summary from Cumbria LGPS Board 
Meeting 22nd September 2017 

Resolved that Members receive the minutes and:-

1. Note the additional recommendation – that the Board request the Pension 
Committee consider the procurement of an External Governance Review, 
covering the internal management of future relationships between the Fund 
and BCPP Ltd and the process of transitioning assets to the pool.

Pension Committee welcomed the recommendation from the Board but 
considered this would be more appropriate in 12-18 months’ time after the 
transition of assets has commenced.

Item 11: (pages 61 to 66) Training Update and Future Planned 
Training.

Pensions Committee resolved to:-

1. Receive and note the progress towards delivery of the training policy and the 
2017/18 Training Plan.

Item 12: (pages 67 to 74) Minutes of BCPP Joint Committee

Pensions Committee noted the minutes of the BCPP Joint Committee. 

Item 13: (pages 75 to 92): Update on Implementation of BCPP Asset 
Management Company (Update VIII)

Pensions Committee resolved to note the progress on development of BCPP 
Ltd.

In addition Members resolved to:
Devolve responsibility to the S151 Officer in consultation with the Chair of the 
Pension Committee to increase the BCPP Development budget by up to 

31



Appendix 1

£50,000 and report back to Pension Committee in March 2018.

Item 14 (pages 93 to 138): Responsible Investment Policy

Pensions Committee resolved to:-

1. Note the BCPP Ltd Responsible Investment Policy and Corporate Governance 
and Voting Guidelines.

2. Note that officers will review the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement 
including its approach to Responsible Investing and recommend any required 
amendments to the March 2018 Committee.

Item 16 (pages 139 to 144) : Voluntary Scheme Pays

Pensions Committee resolved to:-

1. Note that the Pension Fund currently offers Mandatory Scheme Pays to 
members of the Fund who are subject to a tax liability due to the annual 
Pension Growth (including pension savings outside of the LGPS) being in 
excess of the annual allowance limit.

2. Implement a Voluntary Scheme Pays arrangement for affected members of the 
Fund as detailed in the report.

Item 17 (pages 145 to 150) : Update on Progress of MiFID II 

Pensions Committee resolved to:-

1. Note the progress in opting the Fund up to elective professional client status 
with financial services providers.

A further update was provided at the meeting to indicate that all 21 financial 
services providers that hold the Fund’s assets had confirmed their agreement 
to Opt the Fund up to elective professional status (one of only 4 funds in the 
LGPS to have achieved compliance at this date).

 
Item 18: (pages 151 to 162) Half-Year Update of the Pensions 
Administration 2017/18 Budget & Business Plan  

Pensions Committee resolved to:-

1. Note the progress against the approved Business Plan.

2. Increase the Investment Management budget by £0.102m from £3.619m to 
£3.721m to reflect the increase in the asset value of the Fund. 

3. Note the 2017/18 half year projected outturn position against budget for the 
Cumbria LGPS and forecast underspend of £0.048m.

32



Appendix 1

Item 19: (pages 163 to 242) Quarterly Monitoring Report (July to 
September 2017)

Pensions Committee resolved to:-

1. Receive and note the monitoring of the Fund for the period from 1st July 2017 
to 30th September 2017.

2. Approve applications to join the Fund from Mack Trading Limited relating to 
their contract for the provision of leisure services on behalf of Carlisle City 
Council.

33



Appendix 1

CUMBRIA PENSIONS COMMITTEE : 5th December 2017
PART 2 PAPERS

Item 20: Paper 18 Appendix 2 - Half-Year Update of the Pensions 
Administration 2017/18 Budget & Business Plan (pages 243 to 244)

No recommendations : Appendices to note

Item 22: (pages 245 to 252): Quarterly Monitoring Report to 30th 
September 2017

Pensions Committee resolved to:-

1. Receive and note the quarterly monitoring of the Fund for the period to 30th 
September 2017.

Item 23: (supplementary paper to page 321) Investment Sub Group 
Activity Report to November 2017.

Pensions Committee resolved to:-

1. Agree with the Investment Sub Group’s conclusion that equity protection 
strategies are, in principle, an effective means by which equity value can be 
protected and thereby assist in the aim to stabilise employer contribution rates 
at the 2019 valuation..

Pensions Committee also resolved to:-

2. request the Investment Sub Group to further explore and assess potential 
equity protection strategies and approve a course of action. This may be:

 implementation of an equity protection solution (on identification of the 
appropriate product and market timing), or

 not to pursue the matter further;

3. request that the Investment Sub Group reports back to the March Pensions 
Committee on the course of action taken, clearly detailing why this was 
considered optimal for Cumbria Pension Fund.

Pension Committee resolved to note the progress of the ISG from September to 
November 2017 and:-

4. notes the overall performance of the Fund at September 2017 and that, at a 
specific manager level, while one equity manager remains on watch there are 
no matters of sufficient concern to warrant escalation from the individual 
manager performance reviews.

5. approves the proposed work programme of the ISG for the next reporting 
period.

34



                   

  Appendix 2

CUMBRIA LGPS & PENSION BOARD RISK REGISTER (December 2017)
1. Operations

Impact Likelihood Overall 
risk 

rating 

1: lowest, 5: highest (impact x 
likelihood)

Risk 
Ref

Owner Risk area

Previous quarter score in brackets

Target score for risks above green 
shown in italics

Control(s) Comment

1.1a Scheme 
Manager 
& YPS

Operational disaster 
(fire/flood etc.)

4 1
4

Green

Administration (Your Pension Service): 
business continuity procedures in place for 
administrator.  Reviewed by Collaborative 
Board.
Other operations: business continuity 
procedures in place for scheme manager 
(CCC).  These are tested corporately in 
accordance with CCC policies and 
procedures.
To improve the level of information security 
and reduce the likelihood of a data breach, 
the Council has commenced the roll-out of 
Egress, e-mail encryption software, 
designed to secure and control sensitive 
information and large files being e-mails 
outside the Council’s secure IT network.

Direction of travel
Your Pension Service (YPS): Lancashire 
County Pension Fund's Compliance function 
ensures that Your Pension Services stated risk 
management processes and procedures form 
part of the Funds Risk Register.
CCC: The Council retains a Business Continuity 
plan which includes risks associated with the 
Pensions Service.
All Lancashire County Council’s business 
continuity plans are reviewed and co-ordinated 
by the Council’s emergency planning services 
which provide a QA function by in respect of 
individual service plans.  

1.1b Scheme 
Manager 
& YPS

Operational disaster – 
Cyber Crime / Digital 
Information Security 3 5

15
Amber

Your Pension Service (YPS): 
 Cyber security risks and controls in 

place
 Build and understanding of what 

generates cyber security risks

Direction of travel 
Your Pension Service (YPS): Mitigating risks 
taken from the risk register of YPS.
CCC: The A&A Committee are planning to 
review the wider Council’s mitigating actions 

35



                   

  Appendix 2

Risk 
Ref

Owner Risk area

Impact Likelihood Overall 
risk 

rating 

Control(s) Comment1: lowest, 5: highest (impact x 
likelihood)

Previous quarter score in brackets

Target score for risks above green 
shown in italics

 Develop a Cyber Security Policy. Build 
into information security policy

 Embed into Information Security 
Training

 Test if an Cyber threats attempted
 Business Continuity Plan

CCC: The Council has met the compliance 
requirements for ongoing access to the 
national Public Service Network (PSN) and 
a new PSN connection compliance 
certificate has been awarded by the 
Cabinet Office.

relating to the risk of cyber-crime in due course. 
The risk register will be updated to ensure 
consistency with the overarching Council 
approach.

1.2a Scheme 
Manager

Member data 
incomplete or 
inaccurate: impact on 
annual statutory 
requirements (Annual 
Benefit Statements 
(ABS) and year-end 
accounting)

3 2
6

Green

Internal audit work undertaken on YPS 
controls to provide assurance that internal 
controls over the operation and 
administration Cumbria’s data are 
adequate and effective (annually).
Monthly reconciliation of largest employer 
in Fund (CCC) contribution data to payroll 
to ensure consistency.
Monthly reconciliation of employer 
contributions to data submitted by 
employers.
Quarterly YPS key performance indicators 
includes measures of timeliness of update 

Direction of travel
Impact on year-end accounting: external 
auditors have identified this as a key risk (this is 
a standard risk). 
The 2016/17 accounts have been signed off as 
an unqualified opinion with no 
recommendations arising. 
Impact on ABSs: Statements were issued in 
advance of the statutory deadline of 31/8/17. 

36



                   

  Appendix 2

Risk 
Ref

Owner Risk area

Impact Likelihood Overall 
risk 

rating 

Control(s) Comment1: lowest, 5: highest (impact x 
likelihood)

Previous quarter score in brackets

Target score for risks above green 
shown in italics

of records.
Reasonableness testing of detailed data by 
Actuary (annually as part of IAS19/FRS17 
and triennially as part of triennial valuation 
work).
Analytical review undertaken by officers in 
movements in membership numbers 
(quarterly with more in-depth review 
undertaken annually). 

1.2b Scheme 
Manager

Member data 
incomplete or 
inaccurate: impact on 
triennial valuation

3 2 6

Green

Internal audit work undertaken on YPS 
controls to provide assurance that internal 
controls over the operation and 
administration Cumbria’s data are 
adequate and effective (annually).
Monthly reconciliation of largest employer 
in Fund (CCC) contribution data to payroll 
to ensure consistency.
Monthly reconciliation of employer 
contributions to data submitted by 
employers.
Quarterly YPS key performance indicators 
includes measures of timeliness of update 
of records.

Direction of travel
No material issues relating to membership data 
were identified as part of the 2016 triennial 
valuation. Regardless, member data remains 
under close review.
 

37



                   

  Appendix 2

Risk 
Ref

Owner Risk area

Impact Likelihood Overall 
risk 

rating 

Control(s) Comment1: lowest, 5: highest (impact x 
likelihood)

Previous quarter score in brackets

Target score for risks above green 
shown in italics

Reasonableness testing of detailed data by 
Actuary (annually as part of IAS19/FRS17 
and triennially as part of triennial valuation 
work).
Analytical review undertaken by officers in 
movements in membership numbers 
(quarterly with more in-depth review 
undertaken annually). 

1.3 Scheme 
Manager

Administration process 
failure / 
maladministration

3 2 6

Green

Formal agreement in place with Lancashire 
County Council for the discharge of 
pension administration functions through 
the Local Pensions Partnership. This 
confirms Lancashire will exercise the same 
skill, care and diligence they would apply to 
the discharge of their own functions in 
relation to the administration of pensions.

Formal quarterly meetings of YPS, 
Lancashire CC and Cumbria LGPS officers 
to review and consider standards of service 
provision against YPS internal KPIs.

Annual review by CLGPS of internal audit 
work undertaken on YPS controls to 
provide assurance that internal controls 
over the operation and administration of 
Cumbria LGPS’s data are adequate and 

Direction of travel
Agreement covers key considerations including 
data protection, Freedom of Information, 
conflicts of interest and early warning.

YPS exceeded all internal LGPS KPI targets in 
2016/17.

Internal audit work completed in April 2017 
concluded ”substantial assurance that there is 
generally a sound system of internal control, 
adequately designed to meet the services 
objectives, and controls are generally being 
applied consistently” for pension administration 
at YPS.

38



                   

  Appendix 2

Risk 
Ref

Owner Risk area

Impact Likelihood Overall 
risk 

rating 

Control(s) Comment1: lowest, 5: highest (impact x 
likelihood)

Previous quarter score in brackets

Target score for risks above green 
shown in italics

effective.

Regular (at least quarterly meeting) of 
operational group (‘review group’).  

Ongoing dialogue with officers at YPS 
throughout the year. 

1.4 Scheme 
Manager

Loss of key personnel

3 2 6

Green

Detailed training programme for Fund 
Officers.
Recourse to independent expert advisors 
and YPS.
Succession planning.

Direction of travel
Succession planning is a key factor in the 
increase to internal staffing.  As with current 
team members all new team members will be 
given appropriate training.

1.5 Scheme 
Manager

Exceptional workload 
pressures within the 
team due to the 
pooling agenda, 
coinciding with triennial 
valuation and year end 
accounting processes. 

3 4 12

Amber

Recourse to independent expert advisors 
when required, e.g. the Fund’s Actuary 
(valuation), YPS (GMP reconciliation) and 
other relevant external experts.

Direction of travel
Recruitment to key posts, appropriate work 
planning and support from independent 
advisors has mitigated this risk.
Given the workload pressures from the 
development of BCPP, and the preparation for 
the transition of assets to the pool, it is 
appropriate to retain the risk scores at current 
levels and review these towards the end of the 
year.

39



                   

  Appendix 2

2. Financial

Impact Likelihoo
d

Overall 
risk 
rating 

1: lowest, 5: highest
(impact x 
likelihoo
d)

Risk 
Ref

Owner Risk area

Previous quarter score in 
brackets
Target score for risks above 
green shown in italics

Control(s) Comment

2.1 Scheme 
Manager

Excessive charges by 
suppliers

2 2 4
Green

Officers & Investment advisers consider fees for 
investments both prior to and post selection. 
Consideration process includes, where 
applicable, negotiation.
Detailed budget set annually for all costs.
Monitoring of budget by Officers throughout the 
year.
Formal reporting of forecast outturn to 
Committee at q2 and q3.
Final outturn included in audited accounts.
Benchmarking of costs (CIPFA, CEM).
Retendering of service contracts carried out in 
line with CCC procurement policy.

Direction of travel
Examples of consideration of investment fees 
include: 
 Renegotiation in 2016/17 of passive equity 

fees reducing from 5bps to 1.5bps saving c. 
£0.320m to the Fund, Renegotiation in 
2016/17 of custodian fees resulting in 
savings of c £0.030m to the Fund.

2.2 Scheme 
Manager

Fraud / Fraudulent 
behaviour / financial 
irregularity / significant 
opportunity for 
recovery missed e.g. 
class action / tax 
reclaim.

2 3 6
Green

Fraud – Active participation in the National 
Fraud Initiative reduces likelihood of unidentified 
deaths and fraudulent pension claims.
Segregation of duties and a delegated scheme 
of authority minimises the risk of fraud.

Recoveries – Fund has specialist providers for 
key recovery areas such as tax and class 
actions.

Direction of travel
One ongoing fraud case has been reported to 
Pensions Committee as part of the quarterly 
monitoring report 
A further 22 cases are currently being reviewed 
following a biennial review of data from the 
National Fraud Initiative.

2.3 Scheme 
Manager

Significant losses on 
the transition of 2 3 6

Green
A transition manager would be appointed for 
significant transitions (minimises costs e.g. by 

Direction of travel
Any planned changes to managers are 

40



                   

  Appendix 2

Risk 
Ref

Owner Risk area

Impact Likelihoo
d

Overall 
risk 
rating 

Control(s) Comment1: lowest, 5: highest
(impact x 
likelihoo
d)

Previous quarter score in 
brackets
Target score for risks above 
green shown in italics

investment assets due 
to the volume and 
timing of change in 
managers planned to 
meet the 2012/13 
investment strategy 
review 

matching).
Continual review of Investment Strategy and 
cash limits by Sub Group and Officers to ensure 
moves are timely and cash limits etc. 
reasonable. 

reviewed with the Fund’s external managers on 
the basis of efficiency and value for money and 
are approved by the Investment Sub Group.

A review of investment strategy was undertaken 
by Mercer Ltd with the results presented to 
Pensions Committee in September 2017. This 
concluded that the current policy was fit for 
purpose and made various recommendations 
that were considered by Members. 

2.4 Scheme 
Manager

The transition of assets 
from Cumbria LGPS to 
BCPP Ltd directly 
results in a significant 
loss of asset value. 4 2

8
Amber

A transition manager will be appointed to 
support the Fund in transitioning assets from the 
Fund to the Pool. 

The National LGPS Framework is to launch a 
framework for transition management in early 
December and the Fund will consider using this 
as a vehicle for contracting a suitable transition 
manager. 

Direction of travel: New Risk

This risk will be kept under review with 
Committee being briefed on the preparation for 
transition and then progress with the transition 
of the assets to the pool.

41



                   

  Appendix 2

3. Funding

Impact Likelihood Overall 
risk 
rating 

1: lowest, 5: highest (impact x 
likelihood)

Risk 
Ref

Owner Risk area

Previous quarter score in brackets
Target score for risks above green 
shown in italics

Control(s) Comment

3.1 Scheme 
Manager

Employer failure to 
pay contributions 
into scheme (e.g. 
due to employer 
error, business 
failure or general 
impact of increases 
in employer 
contribution rates)

4 2 8
Amber

Monthly monitoring of contribution payments 
by employer to ensure contributions received 
are timely and accurate. This reconciliation is 
considered as part of the annual audit 
process.

Late payments are reported to Pensions 
Committee through the quarterly Monitoring 
Report.

Direction of travel 
Monitoring and reconciliation of contributions 
undertaken monthly.  Full reconciliation 
completed and checked as part of year end 
process.

3.2 Scheme 
Manager

Significant financial 
downturn occurs – 
‘1 in 20’ year event.

4 3 12
Amber

Diversification of managers, asset classes and 
geographies. 
Appropriately informed and trained officers 
and Members of the Pension Committee and 
Pension Board.
Support from independent advisors.

Direction of travel
The investment strategy was reviewed in 
2017 to ensure an appropriately diversified 
portfolio. 
Outcomes of this review were presented to 
Pensions Committee in September 2017. No 
amendments were considered necessary to 
the target asset allocation of the Fund.

3.2a Scheme 
Manager

Market risk as a 
result of an 
investment failure 
which may be 
relatively small 

2 4 8
Green

Diversification of managers and asset classes. 
Quarterly monitoring of individual manager 
performance (including review of the market in 
which they operate).
Annual performance review meetings 

Direction of travel
The most recent annual performance review 
was undertaken in June 2017 and found that 
performance; strategy implementation; 
alignment and future investment prospects by 

42



                   

  Appendix 2

Risk 
Ref

Owner Risk area

Impact Likelihood Overall 
risk 
rating 

Control(s) Comment1: lowest, 5: highest (impact x 
likelihood)

Previous quarter score in brackets
Target score for risks above green 
shown in italics

compared to the 
Fund overall but 
large in absolute 
terms.

undertaken by officers and advisors with ‘SIP’ 
managers.

all the managers were in line with 
expectations.

3.3 Scheme 
Manager

Investment strategy 
insufficiently flexible 
to exploit market 
opportunities

3 3 9
Green

The Investment Strategy Statement sets out 
investment strategy of the Fund.  All Fund 
investments must align with this.
Ongoing high level review of Fund’s 
investment strategy by Cumbria Pensions 
Investment Sub Group (e.g. through quarterly 
performance monitoring).
Delegations to Sub Group include 
implementing tactical changes to the 
Investment Strategy or Asset Allocation thus 
providing the flexibility for the Fund to respond 
promptly to opportunities / potential new risks.

Direction of travel
The current Investment Strategy Statement 
was approved by Pensions Committee in 
March 2017.

3.4 Scheme 
Manager

Long term cash flow 
– that the Fund will 
turn cash negative 
(after investment 
income) faster than 
anticipated, such 
that insufficient 
cash is available 
when required to 
pay pensions.

3 3 9
Green

Mitigation provided by Fund’s Investment 
Strategy – Liquidity / Maturity risk and 
specifically the issue of changes to LGPS 
impacting on the maturity profile of the LGPS 
and the cash flow implications thereof are 
reflected.
Consideration of options to address the 
movement of the Fund towards a negative 
cash flow position are included in the Business 
Plan.

Direction of travel

3.5 Scheme Short term cash 2 2 4 As above and: Direction of travel

43



                   

  Appendix 2

Risk 
Ref

Owner Risk area

Impact Likelihood Overall 
risk 
rating 

Control(s) Comment1: lowest, 5: highest (impact x 
likelihood)

Previous quarter score in brackets
Target score for risks above green 
shown in italics

Manager flow – that the Fund 
has to sell 
investments at an 
inopportune time to 
meet short term 
cash flow 
requirements, 
particularly those 
arising from illiquid 
asset classes such 
as infrastructure 
and opportunistic 
investments.

Green Fund’s cash limit (as detailed in the Fund’s 
Cash Investment Policy) is regularly reviewed 
to ensure it appropriately reflects the working 
capital requirements of the Fund.
Cash flow of Fund monitored and forecasts 
produced on a quarterly basis (minimum)

The Fund’s Cash Policy states that day to day 
working cash cannot exceed 2.5% of the total 
Fund. This enables an appropriate balance 
between the requirements of the Fund for 
working capital (e.g. pensioners’ payroll) and 
delivering returns (as holding cash may cost 
the Fund in terms of potential lost returns).

44



                   

  Appendix 2

4. Regulatory and compliance

Impact Likelihood Overall 
risk 

rating 

1: lowest, 5: highest (impact x 
likelihood)

Risk 
Ref

Owner Risk area

Previous quarter score in brackets
Target score for risks above green 

shown in italics

Control(s) Comment

4.1 Scheme 
Manager

Failure to interpret 
rules or legislation 
correctly

3 2 6 
Green

Robust training policy and plan: including 
regular attendance at pensions training and 
update events.
Regular monitoring of key sources of 
information e.g. government publications, 
industry expert briefings and press.
Liaison with LGPS colleagues.

Direction of travel
Changes to regulation / legislation are 
monitored on an ongoing basis (and formally 
reported to the Committee on a quarterly 
basis).  

4.1a Scheme 
Manager

Changes to LGPS 
governance – 
LGPS 2015 
governance 
regulations

3 3 9
Green

Regular monitoring of key sources of 
information e.g. government publications, 
industry expert briefings and press.
Liaison with LGPS colleagues.
Regular attendance at pensions training and 
update events.
Action taken on draft regulations.

Direction of travel
Consideration of governance issues and 
changes to regulations are reported to 
Pensions Committee on a quarterly basis. 

4.1b Scheme 
Manager

Changes to LGPS 
structures – pooling 
of investments is 
mandated and 
timescales / 
parameters / 
requirements are 
unrealistic / short 
term resulting in a 
significant increase 
in liabilities and, 
consequently, 

4 2 8
Amber

Regular monitoring of key sources of 
information e.g. government publications, 
industry expert briefings and press.
Liaison with LGPS colleagues and other 
interested parties. 
Attendance at key meetings (e.g. LGA).
Responses to consultations.

Direction of travel 
An update on the pooling of assets is 
provided as a separate report to the Pensions 
Committee.
 

45



                   

  Appendix 2

Risk 
Ref

Owner Risk area

Impact Likelihood Overall 
risk 

rating 

Control(s) Comment1: lowest, 5: highest (impact x 
likelihood)

Previous quarter score in brackets
Target score for risks above green 

shown in italics

unsustainable 
employer 
contribution rates.

4.2 Scheme 
Manager

Conflicts of interest

2 4 8
Green

Committee:  All Committee members with 
voting rights have signed up to their Council’s 
Code of Conduct which covers registration of 
interested.  Disclosure of interests is a 
standing item on agenda. 
Board: all members have signed up to the 
Board’s Code of Conduct and Conflicts of 
interest policy (which are aligned to those of 
the Council). At each meeting members will 
be asked to disclose any changes to their 
situation.  

Direction of travel
Training previously provided to Pensions 
Committee and Board considered to 
appropriately advise Members of their 
responsibilities.
  

4.3 Scheme 
Manager

Annual report and 
accounts criticised 
by external auditors 
/ Pensions regulator

3 2 6
Green

Trained, experienced officers produce 
accounts to a detailed timetable.
Specific training includes officers attending 
CIPFA annual pensions closedown event and 
review of relevant CIPFA guidance.
Accounts produced in line with CIPFA 
example accounts.
Annual Report produced in line with CIPFA 
guidance.
Detailed review of accounts undertaken by 
officers and members.

Direction of travel
2016/17 Accounts and Annual Report 
provided with an unqualified audit opinion 
and with no recommendations.

4.4 Scheme 
Manager

EU directive 
Markets in Financial 
Instruments 

3 (4) 1 (2)
3 (8)

Green 
(Amber)

The Fund has been progressing with 
applications to financial institutions to be 
opted up to professional client classification.  

Direction of travel

An update on MIFID ii is provided in the 

46



                   

  Appendix 2

Risk 
Ref

Owner Risk area

Impact Likelihood Overall 
risk 

rating 

Control(s) Comment1: lowest, 5: highest (impact x 
likelihood)

Previous quarter score in brackets
Target score for risks above green 

shown in italics

Directive II (MiFID 
II) defaults Local 
Authorities to retail 
client status thus 
significantly 
reducing the pool of 
asset managers 
willing to provide 
services to Local 
Authority Funds.

Monitoring Report to Pensions Committee.  

47



                   

  Appendix 2

Key:

Impact

5. Most severe amber amber amber red red

4. Major Green

1.1a

Amber

2.4; 3.1; 4.1c

Amber

3.2a 

red  red

3. Moderate Green
4.4

Green
1.2a; 1.2b; 1.3; 
1.4; 4.1a; 4.3

Green
3.3; 3.4; 4.1b

Amber
1.5

Amber
1.1b

2. Minor green Green
2.1; 3.5

Green
2.2; 2.3

Green
3.2b; 4.2

green

1. Insignificant green green green green green

1. Very unlikely 2. Unlikely 3. Possible 4. Likely 5. Very likely

Likelihood48



Document is Restricted

49

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

49

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Terms of Reference and Membership
	5 Minutes
	9 Cumbria Local Pension Board focus for 2018 into the future
	10 Review of Pensions Committee Decisions and Other Matters for Consideration During the Period
	Paper 10 Appendix 1 Pension Committee Decisions for quarters to December 2017 v2
	Paper 10 Appendix 2 Cumbria LGPS & Pension Board Risk Register December 2017 v1.0

	11 Review of Administration Matters. Issues raised since last meeting
	Paper 11 Appendix 1 YPS Cumbria Quarterly Pensions Q2 2017 Final


